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Other Recent Decisions

BEnEFIT LITIGATIOn

Pennsylvania Chiropractic Association et al. 
v. independence Hospital indemnity Plan, inc.  

The U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit 
overturns the district court’s ruling in favor of the 
plaintiff chiropractors and finds that the plaintiffs’ 
dispute with the defendant insurer did not fall 
within the “zone of interest” regulated by the Em-
ployee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA).  
The plaintiffs included a psychiatric association 
and two individual chiropractors. The defendant 
was an insurance provider that entered into a “par-
ticipating provider” or “network” agreement with 
the plaintiffs. The dispute concerned the amounts 
the plaintiffs received under their participating 
provider contracts. The insurer reimbursed the 
plaintiffs on a capitation basis (i.e., a fixed amount 
per patient per year without regard to the value 
of services rendered). The plaintiffs claimed that 
the insurer was required to use a fee-for-service 
system. The insurer had paid for some services 
using the fee-for-service system but later claimed 
those payments were a mistake and recovered the 
overpayment by reducing future payments to the 
plaintiffs. The plaintiffs brought suit arguing the 
insurer violated ERISA Section 1133 by failing 
to follow the procedures set out under Depart-
ment of Labor regulation 29 C.F.R. §2560.503-1 
regarding its decisions about coverage and lev-
els of payment, and the district court agreed. On 
appeal, the circuit court finds that the plaintiffs 
are not ERISA beneficiaries and, therefore, their 
claims are outside the ERISA “zone of interest.”  
The court explains that a beneficiary is a person 
either designated by a plan participant or “by the 
terms of an employee benefit plan.” The plaintiffs 
failed to produce any valid assignments from 
their patients, and they also were not designated 
as beneficiaries under an ERISA plan. The plain-
tiffs’ argument that the insurer was an ERISA plan 
failed because the insurer was not “established or 

maintained by an employer or by an employee 
organization,” as defined under ERISA Section 3. 
Since the plaintiffs were not “beneficiaries,” they 
were not entitled to enforce the claims procedures 
established under ERISA Section 1133. Therefore, 
the circuit court vacates the damages and injunc-
tions awarded by the district court. Nos. 14-2322, 
14-3174 and 15-1274 (7th Cir. October 1, 2015).

RETIREE HEALTH CARE

Di Biase et al. v. SPX Corporation
The U.S. District Court for the Western District 
of North Carolina denies the plaintiff retirees’ 
motion for a preliminary injunction against their 
defendant former employer to prevent a change 
in the structure of how retiree medical benefits 
would be provided. The plaintiffs included a union 
and a class of former employees represented by the 
union who retired from a heating, ventilation and 
air conditioning supplier. The plaintiffs alleged 
that the defendant violated certain 2004 settle-
ment agreements between the parties in which the 
defendant agreed to provide health care benefits 
to retirees and surviving spouses for the remain-
der of their lives. The agreements did not mandate 
a particular plan or type of plan. In 2014, the de-
fendant decided that instead of providing a group 
plan for Medicare-eligible retirees, it would fund 
a health reimbursement arrangement (HRA) for 
each member that could be used to purchase in-
surance in the independent Medicare market. The 
defendant notified the plaintiffs of the change in 
July 2014, providing information that the changes 
would take effect on January 1, 2015. The plain-
tiffs filed suit, seeking a preliminary injunction 
restraining the defendant from terminating the 
group plan and instituting the HRA structure. The 
court finds that a preliminary injunction is moot 
because the plaintiffs’ motion did not become ripe 
for review until the defendant filed its response 
on January 5, 2015, after the changeover from the 
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group plan to the HRA had taken effect. The court 
also finds that the plaintiffs failed to meet the 
standards required for a preliminary injunction; 
namely, the plaintiffs failed to show they were 
likely to succeed on the merits of their claims of 
emotional distress and irreparable harm to their 
health and welfare. The plaintiffs also failed to 
demonstrate that the balance of equities tipped in 
their favor or that an injunction was in the pub-
lic interest. Therefore, the court denies plaintiffs’ 
motion for preliminary injunction. No. 3:14-cv-
00656-RJC-DSC (W.D.N.C. September 29, 2015).

WITHDRAWAL LIABILITY

Frye v. Youngs Excavating, inc. 
The U.S. District Court for the Southern District 
of Indiana holds that the defendant excavating 
company forfeited its right to arbitrate the plain-
tiff multiemployer pension fund’s withdrawal li-
ability assessment and holds the defendant liable 
for unpaid withdrawal liability, plus interest. The 
plaintiffs were a multiemployer pension fund and 
its trustee. The defendant was an excavating com-
pany that was previously a signatory to a collective 
bargaining agreement (CBA) with a labor union 
under which the fund provided pension benefits 
to the excavating company’s employees. In 2012, 
the defendant notified the union that it would not 
renew the CBA. The fund’s actuary computed the 
amount of withdrawal liability and provided it to 
the defendant. The defendant requested a copy of 
the actuary’s worksheets. The defendant made two 
payments to the fund but failed to make subse-
quent payments. The fund filed a complaint seek-
ing judgment in the amount of the defendant’s 
obligation to the fund, plus interest, damages 
and costs. The fund asserted that the defendant 
waived its right to dispute the withdrawal liability 
because it failed to demand or initiate arbitration 
under Section 4219 of the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act (ERISA). The defendant 
claimed it asserted a defense under ERISA when 
it requested the actuary’s worksheets. However, 
the court notes that the defendant did not request 

the fund to review any specific matter relating to 
the determination of withdrawal liability, identify 
any inaccuracy in the amount or furnish any addi-
tional relevant information to the fund. Further-
more, the court states that the defendant failed to 
intimate or demand arbitration as required under 
ERISA Section 4221(a)(1). The court dismisses 
the defendant’s argument that it initiated arbitra-
tion when it notified the union it would not re-
new the CBA. The defendant’s notice to the union 
contained no request to initiate arbitration, and 
it was not provided to the proper fund at all. The 
defendant also claimed that it did not completely 
withdraw under the special withdrawal provision 
applicable to the construction industry because it 
no longer performed work within the union’s ju-
risdiction. The court notes that even if that were 
true, the defendant failed to present this defense 
within the statutory time limit under ERISA Sec-
tion 4221. Therefore, the court grants the plain-
tiffs’ motion for summary judgment and finds the 
defendant liable to the fund for its unpaid with-
drawal liability, plus interest. No. 1:13-cv-00962-
TWP-DML (S.D.Ind. September 30, 2015).

STOCk PLAnS

Allen et al. v. GreatBanc Trust Company
The U.S. District Court for the Northern District 
of Illinois holds that the defendant trustee did not 
breach its fiduciary duty when the stock price of 
an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) fell 
shortly after the plan was created. The plaintiffs 
were two current and former employees of the 
plan sponsor, a privately held at-home health care 
company, who participated in the plan sponsor’s 
ESOP. The defendant served as the trustee and 
a fiduciary of the ESOP. In 2010, the ESOP pur-
chased company shares for $60 million, funded 
by a company loan to the ESOP, payable over 30 
years at 6.25% annual interest. The plaintiffs filed 
suit alleging that the defendant breached its fidu-
ciary duties because the ESOP overpaid for the 
shares and borrowed money at an unreasonably 
high interest rate. The plaintiffs also alleged that 
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the defendant violated Employee Retirement In-
come Security Act (ERISA) prohibited transac-
tion rules. According to the plaintiffs, the value 
of the ESOP shares was only 78% of the purchase 
price one month after the transaction, 50% by the 
end of the following year and 45% two years later. 
The plaintiffs also alleged that the market rate for 
similar ESOP loans was 4.25%. The court explains 
that ERISA fiduciaries are expected to act with 
the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man 
acting in a like capacity and familiar with such 
matter would use. The defendant argued that the 
plaintiffs failed to plead sufficient facts to state 
a valid claim, and the court agrees. In evaluat-
ing the breach-of-fiduciary-duty claim, the court 
finds that company stock value after the trans-
action does not speak directly to the defendant’s 
duty “under the circumstances then prevailing” 
at the time of purchase. The court also considers 
whether the defendant caused the ESOP to engage 
in a prohibited transaction under ERISA Section 
406. The court notes that the purchase of shares 
by an ESOP from a party in interest is exempt 
from being a prohibited transaction if the shares 
are purchased for “adequate consideration” or fair 
market value. The plaintiffs failed to provide suffi-
cient evidence to bolster their claim that the mar-
ket rate was 4.25%. Accordingly, the court finds 
that neither the discrepancy in loan rates nor the 
subsequent drop in stock price support a plausible 
inference that the defendant breached its fiduciary 
duty. Therefore, the court grants the defendant’s 
motion to dismiss without prejudice. No. 15 C 
3053 (N.D.Ill. October 1, 2015).

STOCk PLAnS

Bryant et al. v. Community Bankshares, inc., 
et al.  
The U.S. District Court for the Middle District 
of Alabama grants the plaintiff plan participants’ 

motion that the defendant employee stock owner-
ship plan (ESOP) failed to redirect a percentage of 
the participants’ plan holdings in company stock 
to their individual retirement accounts (IRAs) 
as requested. The plaintiffs were two employees 
of the defendant banking and financial services 
company. The defendants also included the plan 
sponsored by the company and the plan adminis-
trator. In April 2009, in accordance with the terms 
of the ESOP, the plaintiffs exercised their right to 
diversify their investments and transfer a portion 
of their plan accounts to their respective IRAs. 
The defendants did not comply with the plaintiffs’ 
request and, in January 2010, the company col-
lapsed and the plaintiffs received little more than 
pennies on the dollar for their ESOP accounts. The 
plaintiffs brought suit claiming the plan adminis-
trator had a contractual duty to diversify a portion 
of their accounts within 90 days of their election. 
They claimed the plan administrator refused to do 
so because the company’s share values were plum-
meting and honoring the plaintiffs’ diversification 
requests would have had a detrimental effect on 
plan participants as a whole. The defendants ar-
gued that they had a fiduciary responsibility to 
act for the benefit of all participants. However, the 
defendants did not cite any authority or plan pro-
vision that gave the plan administrator the option 
to override the plan terms, even if the plan admin-
istrator believed that doing so would protect the 
greater good of plan participants. The court finds 
that the plaintiffs have made a plausible showing 
that the plan administrator’s interpretation does 
not provide a reasonable basis for denial of the 
plaintiffs’ rights to diversify their investments. 
Accordingly, the court sustains the plaintiffs’ ob-
jection and denies the defendants’ objection and 
motion to dismiss. The case was referred back 
to the magistrate judge for further proceedings.  
No. 2:14-CV-1074-WKW (M.D.Ala. October 14, 
2015).


